Public Document Pack

AT
)
SR

&@ «

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

22 December 2022

Tel: 01285 623208 or 623210
e-mail - democratic@cotswold.gov.uk

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Planning and Licensing Committee will be held at Council Chamber - Trinity Road
on Wednesday, | | January 2023 at 10.00 am.

V4
M/

Rob Weaver
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Planning and Licensing Committee
(Councillors Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Mark Harris, Stephen Hirst, Sue Jepson, Julia Judd,
Andrew Maclean, Dilys Neill, Gary Selwyn, Steve Trotter and Clive Webster)

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and
Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.
Photography is also permitted.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Committee Administrator know prior to the date of the meeting.

Cotswold District Council, Trinity Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1PX

Tel: 01285 623000 www.cotswold.gsov.uk

Page 1


http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/

AGENDA

Apologies

Substitute Members
To note details of any substitution arrangements in place for the Meeting.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from Members and Officers, relating to
items to be considered at the meeting.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 7 December 2022

Chair's Announcements (if any)

Public Questions

A maximum of |5 minutes is allocated for an “open forum” of public questions at
committee meetings. No person may ask more than two questions (including
supplementary questions) and no more than two such questions may be asked on behalf
of one organisation. The maximum length of oral questions or supplementary questions
by the public will be two minutes. Questions must relate to the responsibilities of the
Committee but questions in this section cannot relate to applications for determination
at the meeting.

The response may take the form of:

a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes);

b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or

c) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated

later to the questioner.

Member Questions

A maximum period of fifteen minutes is allowed for Member questions. Questions must
be directed to the Chair and must relate to the remit of the committee but may not
relate to applications for determination at the meeting.

Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received, except that the Chair
may group together similar questions.

The deadline for submitting questions is 5.00pm on the working day before the day of
the meeting unless the Chair agrees that the question relates to an urgent matter, in
which case the deadline is 9.30am on the day of the meeting.

A member may submit no more than two questions. At the meeting the member may
ask a supplementary question arising directly from the original question or the reply. The

maximum length of a supplementary question is one minute.

The response to a question or supplementary question may take the form of:

Page 2



10.

(END)

a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes);

b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or
c) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated

later to the questioner.

Schedule of Applications (Pages | | - 26)
To consider and determine the applications contained within the enclosed schedule:

Application No. Description Ward Member Case Officer
22/02519/FUL Erection of Councillor Julia Harrison Bowley
incidental Judd
outbuilding

(retrospective) at
Grain Store 5 Old
Dowmans

Farm Coberley
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9FF

Sites Inspection Briefing

Members for |* February 2023 (if required)

Councillors Ray Brassington, Julia Judd, Patrick Coleman, Sue Jepson and Clive Webster

Licensing Sub-Committee
Members for 25% January 2023 (if required)

Councillors Julia Judd, Patrick Coleman, Andrew Maclean, Sue Jepson, and Mark Harris

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

COTSWOLD

Planning and Licensing Committee DISTRICT COUNCIL

07/December2022

Minutes of a meeting of Planning and Licensing Committee held on Wednesday, 7 December
2022.

Councillors present:
Ray Brassington - Chair

Mark Harris Julia Judd Gary Selwyn
Stephen Hirst - Vice Chair Andrew Maclean Steve Trotter
Sue Jepson Dilys Neill Clive Webster

Officers present:

Susan Gargett — Head of Legal Services

David Morren — Interim Development Management Manager

Mike Napper — Major Developments and Appeals Manager

Andrew Moody — Senior Planning Officer

Harrison Bowley — Senior Planning Officer

John Patey — Highways Development Management (Gloucestershire County Council)
Mark Sweet —Highways Technician (Gloucestershire County Council)

Caleb Harris — Senior Democratic Services Officer

Ana Prelici — Democratic Services Officer

Woayne Smith — Democratic Services Officer

146  Apologies

Apologies had been received from Councillor Patrick Coleman (Vice-Chair).

The Chair proposed Councillor Stephen Hirst to serve as Vice Chair for the duration of the
Committee meeting and invited Members of the Committee to vote to show their acceptance.
Committee Members voted unanimously that Councillor Stephen Hirst should serve as Vice
Chair for the duration of the Committee meeting.

Councillor Mark Harris would be arriving later to the meeting.

147  Substitute Members

There were no Substitute Members.

148 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Webster declared an interest as a member of the Cotswold National Landscape
which had objected to application 21/04342/FUL

Page 5



Planning and Licensing Committee

07/December2022

Councillor Hirst declared an interest as both himself and Councillor Duncan McGaw (speaking
on behalf of Coberley Parish Council on application 22/02519/FUL) were members of
Gloucestershire Rural Community Council.

149 Minutes

Minute 143 “Councillor Webster proposed and Councillor seconded that the decision was
deferred pending completion of an all Committee Member site visit...” should read
“Councillor Webster proposed and Councillor Neill seconded that the decision was deferred
pending completion of an all Committee Member site visit...”

Application 20/02798/FUL “Voting — For 6, Against 5, Abstentions 0, Absent 2,” should read
“Voting Record — For 6, Against 5, Abstentions 0, Absent 0,

Applications 21/00549/FUL “Voting — For | |, Against 0, Abstentions 0, Absent 0,” should read
“Voting Record — For 8, Against 0, Abstentions 0, Absent 3,

Application 22/02837/FUL “Voting Record — For 10, Against |, Abstentions 0, Absent 0,”
should read “Voting Record — For 7, Against |, Abstentions 0, Absent 3,”

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed that, subject to the amendments being made, the
Minutes were a correct record of the meeting held on 9 November 2022

Voting Record — For 5, Against 0, Abstentions 4, Absent 2,
I50 Chair's Announcements (if any)

The Chair congratulated Caleb Harris on his promotion to Senior Democratic Services
Officer and announced that Susan Gargett the Head of Legal Services, who had provided legal
advice and support to the Committee for over |5 years, was retiring. The Chair thanked the
Head of Legal Services on behalf of the Committee for all her clear and concise advice that
was always to the point and, when required, assertively delivered.

The Head of Legal Services addressed the Committee and stated that she had enjoyed the
variety and challenges of the cases that the Committee had considered and that it had been a
privilege to work with Councillors and Officers over the years.

I51 Schedule of Applications

21/04342/FUL Extension to yard used for the storage of horticultural products at Melcourt

Industries Limited, Boldridge Brake, Crudwell Lane, Long Newton, Tetbury Gloucestershire
GLS8 8RT

The Senior Planning Case Officer introduced the application that had been deferred at the
November Planning & Licensing Committee meeting to allow for a Site Inspection to take
place, to assist Members in their consideration of the application with regard to viewing the
local road network, and also to request attendance at the meeting by the Highway Authority.

The Senior Planning Case Officer summarised the application and re-presented locality and
site maps and photographs of the proposed development along with details of both the
current road access to the site, proposed improvements, and additional illustrations showing
the location of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), nearby conservation areas
and photographs of roads taken during the Site Inspection.

Page 6



Planning and Licensing Committee
07/December2022

The following people addressed the Committee:
Diane Thomas — Town/Parish Council

Jamie Lewis — Objector

Paul Greatwood — Agent

Nikki Ind — Ward Member

The Chair invited comments from Committee Members following the Site Inspection.

The Committee noted that the roads viewed during the visit were very narrow and any
vehicular passing (HGV/HGV, HGV/car, HGV/tractor, car/tractor) appeared to cause issues
and lead to vehicles being driven onto verges.

The Committee noted the width of the road near to the church was particularly narrow and
difficult to pass for any motor vehicle.

The Committee noted that Melcourt Industries had suspended HGV deliveries to and from its
site on the day of the site visit for Health and Safety reasons.

The Committee noted that the location and length of some of the proposed passing places
would appear to be ‘wholly inappropriate’ adjacent or cutting into an AONB. It was however
recognised that the Highways Authority had the authority to build passing places without
consideration of AONB:s.

The Committee noted that Gloucestershire County Council Highways Authority had moved
on from a previous position where it had not opposed the application, to recommending a
refusal, for the following reasons:

e When the original application had been submitted it was understood that there would
be an off-setting of HGY movements that would give nil detriment, and one Passing
Place had been proposed to improve congestion

e [t then transpired that the off-setting could not take place and the 10 HGV movements
that had been considered, applied to an adjacent ancillary commercial site, and not the
proposed application site, and an additional 12 HGV movements per day would be
created from the application

e An improved form of mitigation had been offered in the form of 5 Passing Places within
the application, and this had initially been considered reasonable.

e Following referral to the Planning and Licensing Committee, the Site Inspection, and
communication with both the Applicant and the Planning Authority, it had become
clear that the application site was intrinsically linked to the adjacent ancillary
commercial site and, should the application be approved, it would fall under B2
commercial use and potentially increase (double) the number of HGV movements.

e This led to the Highways Authority concluding that “...after undertaking a robust
assessment of the planning application and based upon the analysis of the information
submitted, the highway authority concludes that there would be an unacceptable
impact on the safety and operation of the public highway. The proposed development
would fail to provide and maintain safe and suitable access for all users contrary to
INFI and INF 4 of the Local Plan and NPPF paragraphs |10 and | 12. It is therefore
recommended that this application is refused.”

The Committee noted that The Freight Route Map appeared to indicate that the area round
the application site was not recommended for HGV movements.

Page 7



Planning and Licensing Committee

07/December2022

The Committee noted that the formal written notification from the Highways Authority
recommending a refusal was received after the Site Inspection had taken place.

The Committee noted that the Planning and Licensing Committee did not have the authority
to specifically restrict the use of HGV movements to or from the application site as part of
this (or any future) planning application.

Councillor Neill proposed and Councillor Jepson seconded that the application was REFUSED
for the reasons provided by the Highways Authority

RESOLVED The Committee agreed to REFUSE the application for the reason provided by the
Highways Authority

Voting Record — For 9, Against 0, Abstentions |, Absent I,

21/00549/FUL 45 residential dwellings with associated garages/parking, including demolition of
existing petrol filling station and other existing buildings at Northfield Garage, London Road,
Tetbury, Gloucestershire, GL8 8HW

The Major Developments and Appeals Manager introduced the application that was deferred
by Committee at the meeting of 9th November 2022 to allow further negotiations to take
place in relation to the potential provision of additional on-site Public Open Space(s).
Negotiations had been completed and updates had been provided in the relevant sections of
the report, including in respect of items that had been reported to the November Committee
in the Additional Pages to the latter.

The Major Developments and Appeals Manager then re-presented the planning application for
the erection of 45 residential dwellings with associated garages/parking The proposed
development was summarised, and the application site and location maps, photographs and
illustrations were presented to provide context for what was initially proposed along with new
illustrations showing the new proposed green spaces.

The Committee noted that the inclusion of the green spaces had resulted in the loss of three
of the 100 parking original spaces, although this would not reduce the 91 parking spaces that
would be allocated to properties.

The Committee noted that management of the Public Open Space by a private management
company had been proposed by the Applicant and this would require residents to make small
contributions for the upkeep and management of green spaces.

The Committee recommended that the management of the green spaces should first be
offered to Tetbury Town Council for a nominal sum as a preferred solution.

The following people addressed the Committee:
Catherine Sheppard — Applicant
Nikki Ind — Ward Member

The Committee noted that the Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) assessment, the applicant
has provided a plan to deal with this flooding, which is to incorporate

two underground attenuation tanks to store surface water. This strategy was acceptable,
subject to a detailed design condition.

Page 8



Planning and Licensing Committee

07/December2022

Councillor Webster proposed and Councillor Harris seconded that the application was
APPROVED for the reasons provided by the Major Developments and Appeals Manager-.

RESOLVED The Committee APPROVED delegated permission subject to completion of S106
in respect of Affordable Housing, completion of S106 in respect of library contribution, and
confirmation of Lead Local Flood Authority satisfaction.

Voting Record — For 8, Against |, Abstentions |, Absent I,

Erection of incidental outbuilding (retrospective) at Grain Store, 5 Old Dowmans Farm,
Coberley, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL53 9FF

The Senior Planning Case Officer introduced the application for the (retrospective) erection of
an incidental outbuilding on built up land at a site at the western edge of the village of
Coberley located within the Cotswolds AONB.. The site comprised historic vernacular farm
buildings with more modern farm buildings to the north, which had been the subject of
permission for conversion to residential use. No. 5 Old Dowmans Farm, was set centrally
within the latter development, along the eastern boundary of the site and the building
constituted a historic barn, now converted to a dwelling, with a modest garden and off street
parking to the front. The application was summarised, and site and location maps, photographs
and illustrations were presented to provide context for what had been constructed.

The following people addressed the Committee:
Duncan McGaw — Town/Parish Council
Rebecca Murphy — Objector

Richard Greenwood — Agent

Julia Judd — Ward Member

The Committee noted that the host building had been identified as a non-designated heritage
asset.

The Committee noted that the original planning permission (2017) included a condition to
remove permitted development rights and bring the construction of further structures under
the Planning Services control.

The Committee noted that the removal of permitted development rights condition would
usually be carried forward on subsequent applications but this had not happened at this site.

The Committee noted that enforcement officers had determined the change in height of the
built up area on which the new structure stands, as 0.3m, using historic topographic surveys
and more recent physical measurements.

The Committee noted that absence of the condition removing permitted development rights
and existing permission would enable further development of the site with construction of a

car barn, and this would not be considered ‘over-development’.

Councillor Jepson proposed and Councillor Judd seconded that the application should be
DEFERRED to enable a full Committee member Site Inspection to take place.

RESOLVED The Committee agreed to DEFER the application to enable a full Committee Site
Inspection to take place.

Page 9



Planning and Licensing Committee

07/December2022

Voting Record — For 5, Against 4, Abstentions |, Absent |
152  Sites Inspection Briefing

The Committee agreed to a full Committee Member Site Inspection 4 January 2023 to Grain
Store, 5 Old Dowmans Farm, Coberley, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL53 9FF

I53 Licensing Sub-Committee

A provisional Licensing Sub-Committee had been arranged for 21 December 2022 (if
required).

The Meeting commenced at 2.00pm and closed at 4.00pm

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 8

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
| 1th January 2023

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION (HP)

e Members are asked to determine the applications in this Schedule. My
recommendations are given at the end of each report. Members should get in
touch with the case officer if they wish to have any further information on any
applications.

e Applications have been considered in the light of national planning policy
guidance, the Development Plan and any relevant non-statutory supplementary
planning guidance.

e The following legislation is of particular importance in the consideration and determination of
the applications contained in this Schedule:

- Planning Permission: Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 requires that “where in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is
to be had to the development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with
the plan unless material consideration indicates otherwise. Section 66 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of
preserving the (listed) building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest.

- Listed Building Consent: Section |6 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of preserving the (listed) building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest.

- Display of Advertisements: Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
(England) Regulations 2007 - powers to be exercised only in the interests of amenity,
including any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest and public safety.

e The reference to Key Policy Background in the reports is intended only to highlight the
policies most relevant to each case. Other policies, or other material circumstances, may
also apply and could lead to a different decision being made to that recommended by the
Officer.

e Any responses to consultations received after this report had been printed, will be reported
at the meeting, either in the form of lists of Additional Representations, or orally. Late
information might result in a change in my recommendation.

¢ The Background Papers referred to in compiling these reports are: the application form;
the accompanying certificates and plans and any other information provided by the
applicant/agent; responses from bodies or persons consulted on the application; other
representations supporting or objecting to the application.

Page 11



PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE | 1th January 2023
INDEX TO APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION

Parish Application Schedule No.

Coberley Grain Store 5 Old Dowmans Farm Coberley 0l
Cheltenham Gloucestershire GL53 9FF

22/02519/FUL
Full Application

Page 12



Item No Ol:-

22/02519/FUL

Grain Store
5 Old Dowmans Farm
Coberley
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL53 9FF

Page 13



Item No 01:-

Erection of incidental outbuilding (retrospective) at Grain Store 5 Old Dowmans
Farm Coberley Cheltenham Gloucestershire GL53 9FF

Full Application
22/02519/FUL

Applicant: Claire Lewis

Agent: Benchmark Development Planning Ltd
Case Officer: Harrison Bowley

Woard Member(s): Councillor Julia Judd

Committee Date: 7th December 2022

RECOMMENDATION: | PERMIT

UPDATE: This application was deferred at the December 2022 Planning &
Licensing Committee Meeting to allow for a Sites Inspection Briefing, to assist
Members in their consideration of the application with regard to viewing the
potential harm resulting from overdevelopment in the AONB, and view the
potential harm from land level changes at the site.

l. Main Issues:

(@) Design and Impact on Non-designated Heritage Asset

(b) Impact on the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

(c) Impact on Residential Amenity

2. Reasons for Referral:

2.1 This application has been referred to the Planning and Licensing Committee by the

Ward Member (Councillor Judd) for the following reasons:- "l request that this application be
put forward to the Planning Review Panel for consideration for the Planning Committee.

The report does not accurately represent the true situation.
Ground level

22 The report states that "The raised land levels that accommodate the outbuilding are
at most 0.3m, and as such, would not have constituted development in planning terms"

23 Included with the documents under application 17/04117/FUL is a Topographical
Survey dated 8 May 2017. A gate is shown across the driveway which existed at that time.
The ground levels were similar on both sides of that gate. The infill therefore measures about
[.5 metres in depth. Indeed it is evident with the naked eye that the new stone wall stands
some 1.5 metres high and is infilled behind almost to the top. Photographic evidence can be
provided to illustrate this if required. This massive raising of ground level magnifies the
dominating and awkward presence of the building and its incongruity of place.

Page 14



Permission for additional structures

24  The decision notice for the original application 17/04117/FUL included at paragraph 3,
a condition that "no extensions, openings, structures or means of enclosure shall be erected,
constructed or sited in the buildings/application site other than those permitted by this
decision notice"

2.5 This is an important condition and it has not been explained why it was omitted from
the decision notice for application 18/02120/FUL yet it should still be applied. The omission
of this condition leaves the development open to inappropriate expansion and cluttering
subsequent to 22/03399/FUL.

2.6 This should be reviewed urgently to correct the omission so that this condition can
be applied, together with a reassessment of this application.

Impact on adjacent residential amenity

2.7  The Officer refers to the impact on Dowmans Farm, stating that "the development
abuts an open paddock which does not constitute formal amenity space or residential
curtilage". However, it also adjoins a residential driveway and other buildings belonging to
Dowmans farmhouse.

28  The existing drystone wall (leading North from the gateway) and possibly also the new
drystone wall across the former gateway were not designed as retaining walls. They are now
supporting ground built up to |-1.5m and are at high risk of failure as the built-up ground
settles over time.

29 The landscaping scheme is lacking. Mature shrubs or bushes should be planted along
the boundary wall to afford greater privacy to Dowmans Farm.

Other matters

2.10 No reference has been made to the applicant's declaration that the car barn
(21/02051/FUL) would be abandoned with the advent of the gym building.

2.11 It should be clarified whether the car barn permission would remain and, therefore,
that it may also still be constructed, adding further building density and cluttering of the site.
Clarity and possibly further conditions are required here."

3. Site Description:

3.1 The application site lies at the western edge of the village of Coberley and comprises
historic vernacular farm buildings with more modern farm buildings to the north, which have
been the subject of permission for conversion to residential use. The current application
relates to No. 5 Old Dowmans Farm, set centrally within the latter development, along the
eastern boundary of the site. The building constitutes a historic barn, now converted to a
dwelling, with a modest garden and off street parking to the front.

3.2  The host building has been identified as a non-designated heritage asset. The
application site is also located within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Page 15



4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

48

5.

Relevant Planning History:

12/01348/FUL - Change of use from a grain store to a micro-brewery: Permitted
[1/05/2012;

17/02764/FUL - Formation of new access, stopping up of existing access, erection of
wall and change of use to residential garden land: Permitted 31/08/2017;

[7/04117/FUL - Conversion and partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 4 no.
dwellings with access, car parking and landscaping: Permitted 20/12/2017;

18/02120/FUL - Conversion and partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 7 no.
dwellings with access, car parking and landscaping: Permitted 02/10/2018;

18/02686/COMPLY - Compliance with condition 3 (boundary fencing) of planning
permission 17/02764/FUL (Formation of new access, stopping up of existing access,
erection of wall and change of use to residential garden land): Permitted 27/7/2018;

20/02387/FUL - Variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of application
18/02120/FUL (Conversion and partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 7 no.
dwellings with access, car parking and landscaping) - Revisions to internal layouts and
fenestration: Permitted 17/12/2020;

21/02050/FUL - Variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of application
20/02387/FUL (Variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of application
18/02120/FUL (Conversion and partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 7 no.
dwellings with access, car parking and landscaping) - Revisions to internal layouts and
fenestration) - Revisions to internal layouts and fenestration: Permitted 27/08/2021;

22/02475/FUL - Variation of condition 8 (Landscaping scheme - prior to first use), 9
(Time - end of planting season) and |5 (Lighting scheme) of permission 21/0205 |/FUL
(Variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of application 20/02387/FUL (Variation
of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of application 18/02120/FUL Conversion and
partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 7 no. dwellings with access, car parking
and landscaping) - Revisions to internal layouts and fenestration - Addition of four car
barns) - to update landscaping and lighting scheme: Permitted 04/10/2022.

Planning Policies:

TNPPF The National Planning Policy Framework
ENI Built, Natural & Historic Environment

EN2 Design of Built & Natural Environment
EN4 The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape
EN5 Cotswolds AONB

ENI12 HE: Non-designated Heritage Assets
ENI3 HE:Conv'n of non-domestic historic bldgs

6.

6.1

Observations of Consultees:

None.

Page 16



1. View of Town/Parish Council:
7.1 Coberley Parish Council: Strongly Objects:-
First Comment (30/08/2022):

7.2 "Coberley Parish Council strongly objects to this application and requests that it be refused
and removal of the building enforced. The ground level of the garden to No.l (Grain Store 5) has
clearly been raised by in-filling to the top of the new wall which has replaced the old gateway between
Dowmans Farmhouse and the old farmyard area (now garden of No. ). This raise in level appears
to be some |.5metres.

7.3 We note the comments made by James Murphy of Dowmans Farm in his objection letter
against current application 22/02475/FUL regarding landscaping conditions, which have bearing on
this application.

74 On top of this raised ground level has been placed the gym building, which is the subject of
the application 22/02519.

7.5  As a result, viewed from the east (the Dowmans Farm yard and fields further east), the
building, with its black, container-like appearance, casts a dominating, ominous presence over the
Dowmans Farm property, it is incongruous in the beautiful rural setting and is harmful to the AONB.
It is offensive to the eye.

7.6 Viewed from the west, the style and appearance of the building is completely out-of-keeping
with the buildings on the development. It is in a prominent position in front of the principal facade of
the property, Unit .

7.7 We note that the decision giving permission to 18/02120/FUL stated at item 8 c) Officer's
Assessment, second paragraph on page 6 of 8 that "Permitted development rights will be removed

7.8 There appeared no mentions of additional buildings being permitted, referring only to
conversion of the existing buildings."

Second Comment (30/08/2022):

7.9 "Coberley Parish Council wishes to submit a further comment to the comment submitted
earlier today.

7.10  The following condition has been found in the earlier decision and permit, ref Application
17/04117/FUL of 20/12/2017 for Conversion and partial demolition of agricultural barns to form 4
no. dwellings with access, car parking and landscaping | Dowmans Farm Coberley Cheltenham
Gloucestershire GL53 9QY

7.1l This decision applies to the unit which is subject of the application 22/02519/FUL
7.12  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted

Development) (England) Order 2015, or any other statutory instrument amending or replacing it, no
extensions, openings, structures or means of enclosure shall be erected, constructed or sited in the

Page 17



buildings/application site other than those permitted by this Decision Notice. Reason: To retain the
character and appearance of the buildings and their setting in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework, Cotswold District Local Plan Policies 14, 28 and 42."

8. Other Representations:
8.1 Two letters of Objection have been received raising concerns of:
i. Link to separate application 22/02475/FUL;

ii. Out of keeping design with surrounding environment and buildings;
iii. The scale is disproportionate to the plot;

iv. Materials' are out of keeping;

v. The aesthetic is not in keeping with the AONB;
vi. Impact on neighbours outlook and privacy;

vii. Impact on views from footpath;

viii.  Unauthorised nature of the works.

9. Applicant's Supporting Information:
9.1 N/A
10. Officer's Assessment:

0.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that 'If regard
is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under
the planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.'

10.2 The starting point for the determination of this application is therefore the current
development plan for the District which is the adopted Cotswold District Local Plan 2011 -
2031.

10.3 The policies and guidance within the revised National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) are also a material planning consideration.

Background and Proposed Development

104 The application seeks retrospective permission for the erection of an outbuilding
within the garden of the converted barn. The outbuilding is positioned to the front of the
building, on land raised by 0.3m. The building itself covers a footprint of 7.5m x 3.5m, with a
flat roof 2.5m in height.

10.5 The building has been constructed in larch cladding and Marley Eternit Cedral click
boarding; however, during the course of the application the materials have been amended to
incorporate larch cladding on all elevations.

(a) Design and Impact on a Non-designated Heritage Asset

10.6 Local Plan Policy EN2 supports development which accords with the Cotswold Design
Code and respects the character and distinctive appearance of the locality.

Page 18



10.7 Local Plan Policy EN 12 requires development affecting a non-designated heritage asset
to be designed sympathetically, having regard to the significance of the asset, its features,
character and setting. Where possible, development should seek to enhance the character of
the non-designated heritage asset. Proposals for demolition or total loss of a non-designated
heritage asset will be subject to a balanced assessment taking into account the significance of
the asset and the scale of harm or loss. This policy also sets out criteria for assessment of
whether a site, feature or structure is considered to be a non-designated heritage asset.

10.8 Section 12 of the NPPF requires good design, providing sustainable development and
creating better place to live and work in. Paragraph 130 states decisions should ensure that
development will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development. Development should be visually attractive as
a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping, which are
sympathetic to local character and history maintaining a strong sense of place.

10.9 Section 14 of the NPPF addresses climate change. Paragraph 153 of the NPPF states
that, 'in determining planning applications, local planning authorities should expect new
development to comply with any development plan policies on local requirements for
decentralised energy supply unless it can be demonstrated by the applicant, having regard to
the type of development involved and its design, that this is not feasible or viable.
Development should also take account of landform, layout, building orientation, massing and
landscaping to minimise energy consumption.'

10.10 Section 16 of the NPPF (2018) seeks to conserve and enhance the historic
environment and is consistent with Policies EN10 and ENI I.

0.1l The host dwelling has been identified as a non-designated heritage asset by virtue of
its historic nature and characteristic agricultural appearance. Whilst the conversion of the
barns has led to some domestication, the approved scheme sought to preserve the agricultural
character through the use of sympathetic fenestration and limited extensions and external
alterations.

10.12 The current proposal, seeks to introduce a residential outbuilding within the
established residential curtilage of the dwelling. It is noted that the implemented conversion
scheme (18/02120/FUL) did not include a condition removing permitted development rights
for outbuildings, and that the scheme included a number of open timber car ports within the
site. Subsequently, the principle of an outbuilding is not considered objectionable.

10.13 The current design seeks to introduce a simple, partially open, outbuilding into the
front of the plot. The building would be somewhat prominent in views to the north-west and
in some glimpsed views from the south-east. Within these views, the building would appear
as a subservient residential outbuilding with a simple design that achieves an unassuming
appearance. Whilst flat roofs are not generally associated with the wider site, the roof form
distinguishes the building as a clearly modern addition that does not compete with the host
dwelling. Moreover, the incorporation of a flat roof achieves a lower ridge height than could
otherwise be achieved by a more traditional pitched roof. The use of larch cladding on all
elevations is considered appropriate, achieving a sympathetic appearance in keeping with the
barn conversions to the north of the plot. This will lead to an integrated appearance within
the site that will not detract from the retained agricultural character of the host dwelling. The
building will be fitted with double glazed UPVC windows and an EDRM roofing system which

Page 19



are appropriate in terms of their design and will contribute towards the energy performance
of the building.

10.14 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would preserve the
significance of the Non-designated Heritage Asset and is acceptable in this regard.

(b) Impact on the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

10.15 Thesite is located within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).
Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000 states that relevant
authorities have a statutory duty to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the AONB.

10.16 Local Plan Policy EN5 relates specifically to the Cotswolds AONB, and states that in
determining development proposals within the AONB, or its setting, the conservation and
enhancement of the natural beauty of the landscape, its character and special qualities will be
given great weight.

10.17 Section |5 of the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment. More
specifically Paragraph 176 states Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing
landscape and scenic beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (amongst other sensitive
areas), which have the highest status of protection in relation to these issues.

10.18 The application site contains a collection of converted farm buildings. The buildings
have been converted to seven dwellings, which has changed the character of the site from an
open agricultural area, to a more domestic setting. The wider area retains an open character.

10.19 The proposed outbuilding would be located within the established residential curtilage
of the host dwelling and as such, would not result in any encroachment of urban built form
into the open countryside. As noted, the existing character of the site is, in part, derived from
its openness and layout. Whilst the introduction of an outbuilding would result in an increase
in built form, it would share a close relationship with the existing buildings within the site. The
building will be visible from public footpaths, most notably to the north-west, but also in some
glimpsed views to the south-east. Whilst visible, the building will be viewed within its
residential context and would not obstruct any key or long range views into or from the
wider countryside. The applicants have proposed that the proposed outbuilding would be
erected in lieu of the previously approved car barn. Officers do not, however, consider that
the incorporation of both buildings would be objectionable. Both buildings would have a
generally open character and would closely relate to the host dwelling and associated curtilage
which is considered appropriate.

10.20 Within its plot, the addition would be of a proportionate scale, and would not result
in a cramped or overdeveloped appearance, including when considered cumulatively with the
approved car barn. The outbuilding would not incorporate excessive glazing and as such, will
not lead to any harm to the local dark skies.

10.21 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development will preserve the special
qualities of the AONB and is acceptable in this regard.

Page 20



(c) Impact on Residential Amenity

10.22 Local Plan Policy EN2 refers to The Design Code (Appendix D) which sets out policy
with regard to residential amenity. This expects proposals to respect amenity in regards to
garden space, privacy, daylight and overbearing effect. Section 12 of the NPPF requires good
design with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

10.23 The application site sits within a development of seven barns, within which it lies to
the east. Around 24m to the north sit three additional barn conversions, currently under
construction (No's 2 - 4 Old Dowmans Farm). The property adjoins No. 6 Old Dowmans
Farm to the south and No. | Old Dowmans Farm lies around 25m to the west. To the south-
east lies Dowmans Farm around 23m from the application site. The development abuts an
open paddock associated with Dowmans Farm to the immediate east.

10.24 The proposed development would benefit from reasonable separation from adjoining
properties and as such, would not result in any overbearing impact, overshadowing or loss of
light. Whilst concerns have been raised with regard to the impacts on Dowmans Farm, it is
noted that the development abuts an open paddock which does not constitute formal amenity
space or residential curtilage. The building is located between 2.5m and 4m from the shared
boundary and around 23.4m from Dowmans Farm and 26m from its associated amenity space.
Owing to the level of separation, there would be no loss of light or overbearing impact.
Concerns have also been raised regarding the loss of outlook from Dowmans Farm. Right to
a view does not form a material planning consideration, and the impact on the wider landscape
has been addressed in previous sections.

10.25 Concerns have also been raised with regard to loss of privacy and overlooking. It is
noted that this in part, relates to raised ground levels within the easternmost corner of the
garden, which fall outside of the red line development boundary. Subsequently, this would not
form part of the current application. With regard to the outbuilding, the building does not
contain any windows within its eastern elevation and as such, will not result in any overlooking
of the adjoining land and paddock. The proposed development will have some views towards
the three dwellings to the north of the site. The views will be obscured by the angle and
separation distances of around 27m. Moreover, the additional facing window will not be
dissimilar to the existing building frontage of No. 5 Old Dowmans. The level of overlooking
will not therefore be increased as a result of the development. It is therefore considered that
the proposed development will not result in any increase in overlooking, and there will be no
loss of privacy as a result of the development.

10.26 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development will preserve the amenity of
adjoining neighbours and is acceptable in this regard.

Other Matters

10.27 Concerns have been raised with regard to raised land levels within the site. The raised
land levels that accommodate the outbuilding are at most 0.3m, and as such, would not have
constituted development in planning terms. The impact of the increased land levels when
considering the overall height have been considered as part of the assessment of the
applications. Further land level changes have occurred to the east of the existing building. This
land falls outside of the identified red line development boundary, however, and as such form
a separate planning matter. Whilst the total extent of the land level changes have resulted in

Page 21



the levelling of the eastern part of the plot, it is noted that the building works associated with
the outbuilding would not have been reliant on the additional raised land levels. The building
could have been constructed without the requirement for the further land level increases,
through the levelling at up to 0.3m immediately below the building. At the time of writing, the
10.28 Local Planning Authority are investigating the breach in planning regulations. Any
potential unauthorised land level changes that fall outside of the red line development
boundary do not form part of the consideration of this application.

10.29 The proposed development is not liable for a charge under the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended). This is because it is less than 100m2
of new build that does not result in the creation of a dwelling, and therefore benefits from
Minor Development Exemption under CIL Regulation 42.

1. Conclusion:

[1.I  The proposal is considered to comply with Local Plan Policies and as such is
recommended for permission.

12. Proposed conditions:

l. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in strict accordance with
the following approved plans: Front and Left View (Drawing No. A 03 REV A); Rear and Right
View (Drawing No. A 04 REV A); Materials List (Drawing No. A 01 REV A).

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework.

2. Within 3 months of the permission hereby approved, the external walls of the
development shall be built of Larch cladding and shall not be treated in any way and shall be

left to weather and silver naturally and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and
its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2.

Informatives:

l. Please note that the proposed development is not liable for a charge under the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended) because it is:

less than 100m?2 of new build that does not result in the creation of a dwelling, and therefore
benefits from Minor Development Exemption under CIL Regulation 42.

Page 22



/
\ S / Z \\
\ |
\ > /
T -
1 ]
[ <

The approv

(21/02051/FUL) - T
for Unit 1 wif

£z abed

built, given the

6 \

car barn - N

not now be /T -

SITE LAYOUT
scale 1:100

HARD STANDING

10

+2|7652m

T e e S — ~

%

+
8

5

PHASE 2

new hedge

o — O

T e

KEY TO NOTES

1.

ety o

=
i
5

i

ﬁ%

.
v

S

PHASE 2

%
~|

i L :
i o 7.

8.

- 20835m

e

9

B
it

—

b
T
g

" new hedge

AT
SN NN S RS N A

e

o

+ 205.87m

e

50 M

- ’ ) ]
- " 1 l1 |1 i L Ly
Rt e T L g
SRR =; o——=C e (e Wi e =
R T et T P Pl T el
e o S
 +%"",’?""' §: EErjI‘HTjH:Hir = B T - =
S E:q‘# |
Faie s - jﬁ% T
o ar 1 H%% il
S s o b | ] /1]
f:"_‘ 7 ‘,’ ]
S i %%
e Mo e B
o rep e 22
-  , ﬁiﬂfﬁﬁ - 1]
i ]
[
Shos e
L ] \ = j E O 0
'S i ALl A
e
O o ||
e = AN mE——-
>
=i N e i i
D g T L e
Tl ahl 2 h fis
slot d}ain/ : Liiha oz o+ 2005em
< 8
+204
+204]3m

+ 1.11m PROPOSED LEVELS

-
a ko

10.

SUDSTECH PERMEABLE PAVING: By specialist subcontractor: wearing
surface consists of a blend of aggregates mixed with resins in collaboration
with a flexible base of resin bound recycled tyres and aggregate as a fully
permeable system that acts independently to sub base offering a 50mm 360
degree suds compliant system. Sub-base: Type 3 granular sub-base, 4/20mm
graded crushed concrete aggregate to En12620 .The use of a clean angular
stone also performs as an effective soakaway. Highway Agency requirements
dictate a structural layer design in areas where heavy vehicles pass. The
thickness of the sub base layer required is dependent on the sub base soil
conditions and expected loading. If heavy clay or a silty subgrade is present
(CBR>2%) then a granular capping layer or permeable geotextile will be
required.

PERMEABLE PAVING: TEGULA PRIOA PAVING BLOCK COLOUR PENNANT
GREY, on clean decontaminated oversite,' Terram' Robust Geotextile
Fabric,150mm compacted <75 mm -dust clean stone, 25mm sharpe sand.
GRANIT SETS: block margin to access drive common area

PAVING BLOCK KERB: Blue / Black ‘cant’ kerb paving blocks

NEW STONE SLAB PAVING: on clean decontaminated oversite, Terram'
Robust Geotextile Fabric,150mm conpacted <50 TO DUSTmm washed stone,
25mm conpacted sharpe sand. EXTENT TO BE CONFIRM BY CLIENT.

NEW GRAVEL MARGIN: 200mm washed decorative gravel margin between
external wall and paving.

NEW TIMBER FENCE: 1.2m high post and rail fence (SEE DETAIL 03/532), all
timbers to be fully tantalised.

NEW DRY STONE WALL 1.1m: natural stone to match existing walls, cock &
hed capping

Exisitng dry stone wall repaired where required

Option for timber 'CAR BARN' or carport subject to planning

+ 1.11m EXISTING LEVELS

——» FALLS TO PAVING SURFACES

The incidental gym is 3.5m (W) x
7.5m (L) x 2.6m (H)

- 20608m

External wall mounted illuminated light
U fitting max 60 watt
SE R Mixed Spiecies hedge, Planted @ 5 per lin mtr, all
45mm saplings with Spiral protections and planted in
NN accordance with Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust.

60% Hawthorn

20% Blackthorn
10% Holly

10% Dog Rose

Mixed Spiecies Trees Planted in accordance with
Gloucestershire Wildlife trust , to have Protection
selected trees to be 50mm girth, sleeves and
supports.

3 Common Beech

3 Silver Birch

1 Whitebeam Sorbius aria

Grassed areas turf

BEN 0002 Existing and proposed site

plan for incidental gym to Unit 1

ALL DIMENSIONS IN MILLIMETRES UNLESS STATED

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. A 20/07/2020
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

BOUNDARY REVISED

CLIENT: FISHERS HOUSE LTD
F D R D FARM BUILDINGS AT DOWMANS FARM
PROJECT:

THIS DRAWING IS ISSUED TO ESTABLISH DESIGN B 08/09/2020 || UP DATED

INTENT. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ARCHITECTURE COBERLEY GL53 9QY
GUANTITIES, DIMENSIONS, VERIFICATION OF SITE DRAWING TITLE: SITE LAYDUT
CONDITIONS,  COMPLIANGE — WITH — CONTRAGT )

DOCUMENTS FOR INFORMATION THAT PERTAINS TO SCALE:

HUDDLESTONE CLOSE .
THE FABRICATION PROCESSES OR TECHNIGQUES OF LYE LANE CLEEVE HILL PAPER: 1S5S0 A1

DATE: 05/2020
CONSTRUCGTION AND FOR CO-ORDINATION OF WORK CHELETENHAMGLS52 3QD | ooy, AL miBHTe RESERVED ©
WITH ALL TRADES. THE DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE
SCALED AND ALL ERRORS OR OMISSIONS ARE TO
BE REPORTED Pa=] THE ARCHITECT NO. DATE REVISION NOTES STATUS: DRAFT

O iiremaencoue P 200 1 03/978B

A BV I

HARDSTANDING

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn




> WOO0Y UdpIeH) WWO0SE X ww 00SH

v 1e pajurid uaym MIIA PO 3 JUOL]

WWOoS: WwT 9[eds ’ J215SelUU _Q mu

1)

0S:1 aeg poeds

S € S T o
wuw 005 wuw 005t ww 0008
L L % I L
7 7
V4 - - = - —
T — a; _.g1 .|_. ﬂv.__ __.-J .m_ J; — N B ﬂq..ﬂ._ v
i| | | If ¥
1 I\
5 2 il
o) 3 ! ; L
) 1) |
=i 8
3 8
S
MIIA Y91 MIIA oI

22/60/92 Bullamp ay} o} WAL wibs 9z [ojuspioul pesodold | / vV A1 5000 N3d




> WOO0Y UdpIeH) WWO0SE X ww 00SH

Yv 1e pajurid uayp

] R — MBIA WSy X Teay
o WWOS: WWT [ |1o01SPU Q U
g M $ _clseuuige
0SG:1 Jeg pafeos
(Sppm yout
& DUE 0) I5QUILL 150 ——— T
S € S T o
= sureq
Iay)o se o1 ddns awes Aq |
urppe) yoae| pasodoid |
wuw 00S€ \ / ww 000€ ww 00SY
o Lo
N
Q
(@)
@®©
o
N
= :

SuIeq 9Y3 JO 1591 9} U0 SUIpped YdIe[ oY} Yojwe 0} YdIeT YIIm Pe[d 9 0} SI YSIul Yor[q SUIISIXd Y],

MIIA WSy MIIA Jedy

22/60/92 Bullamp ay} o} WAL wibs 9z [ojuspioul paesodold g / vV A2l 000 N3d




9z abed

BEN 0005 rev A / 3 Proposed incidental 26.3 sgm gym to the dwelling 26/09/22

1 . . . u
4500mm x 3500mm Garden Room Cabinmaster

July 11, 2022




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 Schedule of Applications
	Item 01 - Grain Store 5 Old Dowmans Farm Coberley




